Poll Tigh Charraigein and Doirean Rairidh 

Two small inland farmsteads at NC 15964 28336 and NC 15301 27822

Both these settlements are now within the boundaries of the Culag Community Woodland Trust’s Little Assynt Estate, but in the eighteenth and earlier nineteenth century, when they were last occupied, they were outlying parts of the extensive Achmore farm holdings.  They lie some two and a half miles NW of the A 837 close to Loch Assynt Lodge and about one mile apart.

Poll Tigh Charraigein is very well sited in a S facing natural amphiteatre overlooking Loch Innis Thorcaill and with spectacular views to the mountains beyond.  Home’s 1774 survey shows one roofed building within an enclosure and two other roofed buildings and list of inhabitants for the same year records ‘Ann MacRa’, a widow, two children and two servants living there.  They were cleared in 1806 to make way for sheep and in 1811 a new house was provided for shepherd Donald Rutherford.

The outlines of the farmlands stand out green against the surrounding vegetation with the remnants of dykes and clearance cairns and the faint traces of enclosures. The 1811 house survives in remarkably good repair and there are the remains of three other structures in poor condition. Measured sketches were made of these structures and used as the basis for the drawings

House S (NC 15964 28336) is the well built rectangular Shepherd’s house of 1811 aligned NW - SE. It is situated to take full advantage of the sun towards the top of amphitheatre bowl but is rather exposed to northerly winds.  Divided into a domestic area (S1) and a non-connecting byre (S2) with a separate entrance (S2a), the whole building is of good quality dry-stone build with 8 courses of carefully selected stones and pinnings in the longer walls, quoins at the corners and smaller ones for the doorways and windows.  The latter also have well chosen lintels and sills.  The walls of S1 and much of S2 stand to eaves height but the SW wall of S2 has partially collapsed.  The top few courses of the gable walls have also collapsed and the lintel of the central doorway (S1a) in the NE wall is missing.  In the SW wall there are two windows (S1b and S1c) approx .60 square.  The sill of the S1c is missing.  In the E corner of S1 a small alcove .25m square has been built into the gable wall.  On the outside of the SE gable are the remains of a small crudely built dairy or pen (S4) which may have been added during the time the house was occupied or subsequently.  The lowest courses of the NE gable of S2 consist of large stones which project beyond the wall line and act as a revetment for the main structure.  However the line of this revetment continues as an embanked arc (S3) to the SW of S2 and is again revetted with stone as it curves towards doorway S2a.  This suggests that the revetment and bank could be the foundations of an earlier semi-circular ended structure aligned at right angles to House S and running under it.   

Four metres to the SE of S1 is a small rectangular dry-stone outbuilding (S5) measuring 3.5m x 2m aligned NE – SW.  The walls only survive to one or two courses and there is a doorway (S5a) at the SE end of the SW wall. 

Buildings A and B (NC 15871 28287 and  NC 15974 28235)

These two structures have been built on two widely spaced knolls to the S of House S.

A consists of a few ruined courses of rough drystone material outlining an oval building 6m x 3.5m internally and aligned WNW – ESE with a doorway (A1a) towards the SE end of the SW wall.

B is identical in form but measures 6m x 3m internally and is aligned E-W. 

Judging from their deliberately exposed positions A and B may well have been barns, perhaps built for the 1811 house though they could easily predate that and, together with S3 they may be either outbuildings or small houses from the days of Ann MacRa.  Their relative positions don’t match those indicated on Home’s map, but the fact that there are three structures on the ground and three structures on the map perhaps indicates that Home’s positioning of the buildings is approximate. Nothing of the enclosure shown by Home appears to survive in relation to any of the surviving structures.

Doirean Rairidh consists of two buildings and a small enclosure situated on a steep SSW facing slope above the narrows where Loch Doirean Rairidh and Loch Gleannain Shalaich meet.  There is little good ground and few signs of cultivation.  The site is very exposed and the narrowing where the Lochs meet creates a WNW – ESE wind tunnel.  It is difficult to see why anyone would have chosen the site for a house, especially when there is what appears to be much better land (possibly a former shieling) and possible house sites at the NW end of Loch Gleanain Shalaich over half a mile away.  The only record of the farmstead is in the 1811 census when it was occupied by four members of the family of ‘Alexr. MacLeod’.

Measured sketches were made of the buildings and enclosure, but will here only be described by comparison with very similar structures at nearby Loch Beannach.

Byrehouse R (NC 15301 27822) has been built on a small terrace with steep rock faces to N and NE.  It closely resembles houses D, G, J and O at Loch Beannach, has semi-circular ends and survives to six or seven courses of rough drystone build.  It is aligned NW – SE with an entrance in the N wall of the lower SE byre end.  The whole building is 10.50m long internally and tapers from 3.20m wide at the domestic end to 3.50 wide for the byre.  A dyke extend north eastward from the middle of the NE wall for 10 m and then east for another 10m before petering out.  The SW wall is built on top of steep rock face below which is a sub rectangular enclosure (Kaleyard?) approx 115m square.

Outbuilding R1 is situated further down the steep SW slope at NC 15266 27821, aligned E - W and is of similar build to the house.  It measures 7m x 2.5m internally with a central doorway in the S wall outside which the ground drops steeply towards the loch.  Internally to the west of the door a rough semi circular foundation enclosing an area 1.5m sq adjoins the S wall and another similar foundation adjoins the first one to the N. They are most likely later sheep pens but could be the remains of a small drying kiln.

Several Structures found within shielings between the two farmsteads described above and the Loch Beannach settlement to the SE. 

NC 16381 26683 A pen or shelter, 6 courses high enclosing an area approx 1.25m and partially incorporated into a dyke

NC 16406 26718 Three sheiling huts, the largest 5m x 2.5m, a second close by at 3m x 2.5 and the fragmentary remains of a third. 

NC 16384 26729 Another 5m x 2.5m hut.

NC 16624 26809 A pen 2m x 1m and a short consumption dyke

NC 16672 26805 An oval structure 3m x 2m and a sub-rectangular one 2m x 1.5

